APPROVED 10/01/25
TOWN OF FERRISBURGH
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
DRAFT MINUTES
WEDNESDAY September 3, 2025
At Town Offices and on Zoom

Members Present: Norm Smith, Dave Mentzer, Mike Delaney, Katie Quinn, Bob Beach
Members Absent: Diane Nadon

Minute Taker: Robyn King

Town staff present: Katie Hill, Zoning Administrator

Applicants present: Terrence Hooker, Peg Kamens, Carol Stenberg, Jim Mendell
Others present: none

1. Meeting was called to order at 7:02 pm by Norm Smith, and Quorum determined.
2. Meeting Minutes — Review and approve draft Minutes from August 6th meeting

MOTION was made by Dave Mentzer to approve the August 6 meeting minutes which was
seconded by Katie Quinn.

VOTE: All in favor.

3. Adjustments to and adoption of the agenda
Katie Hill made an adjustment to the agenda as there was a request to review the landscaping
by-laws.

4. PUBLIC HEARING - Application Number 25-073: Convert existing residential deck into dining
room addition; Applicants: Peg Kamens & Jim Mendell; 388 Bay Road; Parcel ID number
99/99/99.058; Shoreland District (SD-2); Conditional Use.

Norm Smith introduced the application for converting the existing residential deck into a dining
room addition. Katie Hill indicated that the board heard an application a few months ago for the
same house to convert a portion of the existing deck into a screened porch. This application is
to convert a portion of the adjacent deck into a dining room and is before the board for
Conditional Use Review because it is the enlargement of a single-family residence, which is a
Conditional Use in the Shoreland District. Carol Stenberg, the applicants' architect, noted that
with the previous application, part of the project was dealing with water run-off and they are
interested in continuing the roof straight across with the existing roof and adding a room. Norm
Smith clarified where the dining room would be placed.

Dave Mentzer asked about the scope of the new construction and about door and window
placement, and Carol Stenberg clarified where the door is on the drawings. Bob Beach
confirmed there was already a deck and Dave Mentzer noted that there would be sliding doors.
Bob Beach asked if the white area on the drawings was already a deck, which was confirmed.
Mike Delaney confirmed they were not adding to the footprint of the building. Peg Kamens
showed the screen porch and other features of the site. Norm Smith confirmed there was
approval from the Long Point Association in the file. Peg Kamens pointed out the deck



placement from the drawings. Dave Mentzer asked about exterior lighting and Carol Stenberg
confirmed there would be none, with Jim Mendell indicating that there was some pre-existing
exterior lighting but none planning to be added.

Norm Smith asked if there were any members of the public present to speak to the application,
which there were none. Dave Mentzer commented on the rain garden shown on the map.

MOTION was made by Mike Delaney to close the public hearing, which was seconded by Dave
Mentzer. The public hearing closed at 7:09 pm.

VOTE: All in favor.

MOTION was made by Dave Mentzer to approve the application as submitted with the
condition that any exterior lighting be full cutoff fixtures and that the exterior building materials
match the existing building which was seconded by Katie Quinn.

VOTE: All in favor. Motion passes.
Norm Smith noted that the minutes will serve as the written decision.

PUBLIC HEARING - Application Number 25-079: Waiver of front setback distance for new
residential storage shed; Applicant: Sandra Dunay; 1569 Sand Road; Parcel ID number
14/01/27; Rural Residential District (RR-2); Waiver.

Norm Smith introduced the application and it was confirmed that Terrence Hooker was formally
authorized to be present to speak to the application. Katie Hill noted that this is not a
conditional use review, but a waiver request for a permitted use for a structure sited too close
to the road. Terrence Hooker indicated that due to the property's slope, not much else can be
done but put the building in the location selected and that it would be 18 by 20 feet. Katie Hill
noted the application materials listed two different sizes for the shed, but it was clarified that it
would be 18 by 20 feet.

Dave Mentzer asked about drive access and if this would be built off the driveway, which
Terrence Hooker confirmed. Dave Mentzer asked about use of the building, with Terrence
Hooker noting it would be storage for a collection of items. Norm Smith asked if it would be
used for a garage, but Terrence Hooker said it would only be used for storage. Katie Hill noted
that there are wetlands on the property but they are located along the creek and do not affect
the proposed project. Dave Mentzer noted that this would not be used as an accessory
dwelling, nor did it have septic. Dave Mentzer asked about height of the building and Katie Hill
pointed out that the application said it would be less than 25', with Terrence Hooker confirming
it is a single story and would likely have a 6-12 roof. Mike Delaney asked about building
materials, with Terrence Hooker explaining it would be wood frame with metal roofing or
shingles depending on cost. Dave Mentzer asked about exterior materials with Terrence noting
he could not say for sure but the house had fiberglass siding.

Bob Beach asked if it would be a garage, and there was a question of whether it mattered if it is
storage or a garage. Katie Hill noted it should be reviewed for the intended use, which is listed
as "residential storage shed" on the application.



Norm Smith asked if there was anyone in the public to speak to the application, which there was
not.

MOTION made by Dave Mentzer to close the public hearing, which was seconded by Bob Beach.
VOTE: All in favor, public hearing closed at 7:16 pm.
Norm Smith noted it met requirements for a waiver and it was not unreasonable.

MOTION made by Dave Mentzer to approve the application as submitted with the condition
that any exterior lighting be full cutoff fixtures and that exterior materials be consistent with
what was used on the house, which was seconded by Mike Delaney.

Terrence Hooker requested clarification of what that meant for the finishes. Dave Mentzer
noted that the materials should be of a residential nature and compatible with what’s on the
house. There was also explanation of what full cutoff fixture means.

VOTE: All in favor, motion passes.

Other business — update to dwelling definitions in land use regulations - Katie Hill

Katie Hill followed up on last month's discussion of proposed changes to definitions of dwellings
and ADU in the land use regulations; the status of the proposed updates had been unclear at the
time of the last meeting. Katie clarified that land use regulations have not yet been changed,
but that the listers requested clarification of these definitions due to the start of the town-wide
re-appraisal and the new definitions had been approved by the Select Board. The changes will
go through the normal public hearing process before being updated in the Land Use
Regulations. Bob Beach asked about public hearings, with Katie Hill indicating that the first
hearing for the draft town plan update will be on 9/17 and if no major changes it would then go
to the select board for one or two hearings, so whole process will take a few months. Katie Hill
noted that the Planning Commission sent around a memo requesting feedback by 9/19 on big
picture recommendations for changes to the Land Use Regulations. Bob Beach asked Katie Hill
to share her recommendations with the ZBA when she forwards them to the Planning
Commission.

Other business - landscaping section of bylaws — Katie Hill.

Katie Hill requested feedback on the intent of the 10-foot height requirement for evergreen
plantings per Section 5.20 of the Land Use Regulations regarding required landscaping. This
issue came up on the Tuppers Crossing self-storage facility, where the permit has a condition to
provide evergreen plantings in accordance with Section 5.20 to screen the facility from the
adjacent residential district. Katie Hill noted that the question is whether or not the trees need
to be the required 10-foot height at the time of planting or if it is sufficient for them to grow to
that height in a reasonable amount of time, as there are big implications in terms of cost and
survival rate of the trees.

Dave Mentzer noted it would be his interpretation that the trees would need to grow to 10 feet
in a reasonable timeframe. Katie Hill noted the applicant asked to appear before the ZBA at the
October meeting to request approval to plant trees that are initially less than 10' high, and she is
requesting clarification from the board as to whether this is necessary or if she can approve the



proposed plantings administratively. The board said she could approve the plantings
administratively so long as they meet the intent of Section 5.20 by reaching 10' height in a
reasonable time.

Confirmation of next meetings and events of interest: Wednesday, October 1, 7:00 pm —
regular monthly ZBA meeting.

Adjourn: Katie Quinn moved to adjourn the meeting, which was seconded by Bob Beach. The
meeting was adjourned at 7:29 pm.



